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THE HISTORY OF THE WHITEHOUSE ESTATE IN
HEREFORDSHIRE

Between the Black Mountains of Wales and the city of Hereford lies the
Golden Valley through which flows the River Dore. In the valley, there are
several small villages and hamlets and numerous churches nestling among
the fertile fields and the woodlands on the hilly slopes. The valley is one of
considerable tranquillity and beauty where change comes slowly and only
when it has been proved in other places. Here indeed is a valley where one
can escape the rush and bustle of city life.

In the Golden Valley, one of the villages is Vowchurch and by that village is
a house called Whitehouse. This is an account of that house, its estate and
owners.

Near the Whitehouse estate there are three small churches: Vowchurch (the
church of St Bartholomew), Turnastone and St Margarets. The first two of
these churches lie only a few hundred yards apart with the River Dore
flowing very close beside them. St Margarets is considerably higher up
above the valley just to the South of the Whitehouse estate and hidden from
the house, not least by the substantial woodlands on the upper slopes of the
estate.

Over the centuries,
owners of Whitehouse
played an active part in
the lives of all these
churches and so the
churches themselves
provide at least some
of the insights into the
involvement of the
owners of Whitehouse
in the local parishes.




MAP SHOWING THE WHITEHOUSE ESTATE

SUCCESSIONAL LIST OF THE OWNERS OF WHITEHOUSE
(until its sale by Penelope Bletchly)

1. Symond Parry
2. Griffith Joanes

3. Rowland Vaughan

4. Epiphan Howorth
5. Humfry Howorth

6. Thomas Howorth
7. Herbert Howorth (the elder)
8. Herbert Howorth (the younger)

9. Magdalen Howorth

Isabella Howorth
Elizabeth Howorth
10/11. Bartholomew Haselden
George Pardoe

12. William Wood

13. William Seward Wood

14. Herbert Howorth Wood

15. Arthur Seward Wood

16. Penelope Wood

Born
1573

1559

1566

1653

1675

1695

1701

1702
1703

1758

1793

1834

1880

1924

Died

1577

1628

1647

1679

1719

1728

1745

1763

1775
1769
1783

1833

1862

1924

1968

1994

Married

Jane d. of Symond Parry

of Moore or Whitehouse

(1) Elizabeth, d. of Rowland
Vaughan M.P.

(2) Anne

Blanch Joanes d. of Griffith
Joanes of Llowes, Brecon
Susanne Shaw (b. 1625) d. of
James Shaw of Tregoze, Hereford
Mary Masters (1656-1739) d. of
Herbert Masters of Burghill,
Hereford

Margaret Lutley (1675-1744) d. of
Bartholomew Lutley of Newhall,
Salop

Unmarried

Robert Haselden (d.1768) of
Over Hulton, Lancs

Unmarried

Unmarried

Mary Howorth (b.1696) d. of
Herbert Howorth (the elder)
Frances Haselden (1760-1830) d.of
Herbert Haselden and Mary
Benbow and granddaughter of
Robert Haselden and Magdalen
Howorth

Mary Ann Hardwick (1809-1884)
d. of Joseph Hardwick of Madley,
Hereford

Alice Wyatt Carrington (1849-
1941) d. of Samuel Carrington of
Cheltenham

Honora Penelope Madan (1894-
1980) d. of Charles S. Madan of
Lichfield

John Digby Bletchly (1915-1994)




THE EARLY BACKGROUND

The first record of the name “Whitehouse” appears in the 1577 will of Griffith Joanes.
He was not the first known owner of the estate but such records as there are show that,
prior to that date, the estate had the name “Moor(e)”. However, there are also
uncertainties about when that name first applied to the Whitehouse lands.

It is possible that the area was identified in the Domesday Book of 1096 because there
is a reference to a “More” being situated in Stradel Hundred which is believed to have
roughly corresponded to the present area of the Grey and Golden Valleys. In the
records of the lands belonging to the canons of Hereford there is an entry which states
that “in Stradel Hundred they had a hide worth 5/- in More...”

The Balliol Domesday Book 1160-1170 repeats this information: “In Stradel Hundret
In More est una hida que valet V solidoes. Ipsi canonici habent hidas iij Ibi iij clerici

habent iij villanos cum iiij carucis. Valet xv solidos. Ipsi episcopus Walterus habuit j
hidam Walescum T.R.E. vastatum”.

However, it is at the much later date of 1545 that the first known reference exists
specifically referring to the Moore at Vowchurch and identifying Symond Parry as the
owner. While it cannot now be proved, it seems more than likely that the manor was
indeed identified in the Domesday Book, that it remained in the possession of the

church until the dissolution and that then it was sold by the Crown very probably to
the Parry family.

1. SYMOND PARRY d1573

Symond Parry d 1573

The first known owner of the manor was Symond Parry of the Moor, Vowchurch. He
was a younger son of Henry Myles Parry of Newcourt and his wife, Alys. Henry
Myles Parry was three times High Sheriff of Herefordshire. Alys was the eighth of the
thirteen daughters and co-heiresses of Simon Milbourne of Tillington, Herefordshire.

The family of Parry are reputed to have settled in Herefordshire carly in the 12th
century when their common ancestor Moreiddig of the Golden Vale, son of the Danish
earl Idis Wylt and Elinor, daughter of Bleddin ap Maenarch, the last of the Welsh
Reguli of Brecon, obtained land in the lordship of Ewyas Lacy by marrying Catherine,
Widow of Lord Thomas de Laci Their descendants continued to hold land in the
district for several centuries. In 1399, John ap Harry of Poston served as High Sheriff

of Herefordshire, and with his brother, Thomas, fought in the battle of Agincourt in
1415. In the Wars of the Roses, Henry ap Griffith ap Harry of Poston and Bacton
fought on the Lancastrian side at the battle of Mortimers Cross in 1461. His son
Myles ap Henry of Morehampton was an escheator in 1471 and fought on Richmond’s
side at the battle of Bosworth Field. A fine coloured glass window to his memory was
in the East window of Bacton church, until it was removed to Atcham in Shropshire in
1811.

Symond Parry’s eldest brother was Myles Parry of Newcourt. Myles Parry married
Elinor, daughter and co-heiress of James Scudamore of Kentchurch, and died in 1544,
leaving two daughters, Joan and Elizabeth, who thus inherited both Parry and
Scudamore property. At that time, it included Newcourt, Bredwardine and other
manors. These heiresses married respectively Watkin Vaughan, second son of Sir
William Vaughan of Porthamel, Breconshire, and Rowland Vaughan, MP son of Sir
Roger Vaughan of Porthamel.

In Inquisitions Post Mortem 1545 appears: “Milo ap Harry, Armiger, brother to
Symond of the Moore,(Vowchurch), held the Manor of Jenkyn ap Richard, and Manor
of Mereguston”. The former Manor comprised copyhold rents only, and were payable
to owners of Whitehouse by about sixteen occupiers of land on what is now known as
Lower, Middle and Upper Maescoed. This manor, also described as “alias Newton”
continued to be part of the Whitehouse estate for at least two centuries subsequently.
In 1679, the annual value was £3.3.2 and in 1742 £2.17.5. Thereafter, the amount
seems to have gradually diminished until it ceased to be collected. The location of the
Manor of Mereguston cannot be identified. The first element of the word in Anglo-
Saxon times signified a “boundary”.

Symond Parry’s sister, Blanch Parry, who died in 1589, was described in her will
dated 21 June of the same year as “Gentlewoman of the Queen’s Privye Chamber”.
There is a fine monument to her memory in the Chancel of Bacton Church. This
refers to “Blaenche of Newcourte” and ends “A MAEDE IN COURTE AND NEVER
NO MAN'’S WYFE SWORN OF QUENE ELLSBETHS HEDD CHAMBER ALWAYS
WYTHE MAEDEN QUENE A MAEDE DYD ENDE MY LYFFE”. It may be of
interest to add that she left part of a sum of money “fowards repairing the highway
between Newcourt and More”. There can be little doubt that she was well acquainted
with the home of Symond, her brother, as well as the road between them!

Of Symond’s four children, Miles, John, Jane, and Elizabeth; Miles, John, and
Elizabeth are described in his will as base born. No doubt, for this reason, his
daughter, Jane, inherited his estate.










































